
 
 
 
 
 
 

Individual Decision 
 
 
 

The attached report(s) will be taken as  
Individual Portfolio Member Decision(s) on: 

 

Thursday, 31st May, 2012 
 
 

Ref: Title Portfolio 
Member(s) Page No. 

 

ID2474 Trading Standards service plan 
2012 

Sean Murphy 
Councillor Hilary Cole 

1 - 38 

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 31 May 2012 

Individual Executive Member Decision 
 
 

Title of Report: 
Trading Standards Strategic Delivery 
Plan 2012-14 

Report to be considered 
by: 

Individual Executive Member Decision 

Date on which Decision 
is to be taken: 

31 May 2012 

Forward Plan Ref: ID2474 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To set our the Trading Standards Strategic delivery 
Plan for 2012-14 and seek approval. 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To APPROVE the plan. 
 

Reason for decision to be 
taken: 

The Strategic Delivery Plan sets the high level targets that 
will guide the service direction for the next 2 years.  
 

Other options considered: 
 

None 
 

Key background 
documentation: 

Joint Service Delivery Service Specification 

 
Portfolio Member Details 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Hilary Cole - Tel (01635) 248542 
E-mail Address: hcole@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Sean Murphy 
Job Title: Trading Standards Manager 
Tel. No.: 01635 519930 
E-mail Address: smurphy@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 1.

Page 1



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 31 May 2012 

Implications 
 
Policy: The plan is built on a number of policy strands 

Financial: The delivery plan is funded from with within current financial 
provision and / or direct grant funding for specific tasks and 
initiatives.  

Personnel: None 

Legal/Procurement: The tobacco and aerosol spray paint enforcement policy 
considerations are legal requirements and the Food Plan is 
required by the Local Authority Framework Agreement on 
Food Enforcement. All legal actions are governed by the 
existing enforcement policy.  

Environmental: There are provisions within the plan that contribute to the 
overall obejective of the protection of the environment.  

Property: None 

Risk Management: None 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment: 

Stage one assessment attached at Appendix A 
 

 
Consultation Responses 
 
Members:  

Leader of Council: Graham Jones 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Management 
Commission Chairman: 

Brian Bedwell 

Ward Members: N/a 

Opposition 
Spokesperson: 

Alan Macro 

Local Stakeholders: Wokingham Borough Council 

Officers Consulted: All officers within the Trading Standards Service 

Trade Union: Not consulted 
 

Is this item subject to call-in? Yes:   No:   

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box: 

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council  
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position   
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months 

 

Item is Urgent Key Decision  
Report is to note only  

Page 2



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 31 May 2012 

 
Supporting Information 
 
1. Background 

1.1 The Joint Trading Standards Service was formed in June 2010. The original project 
plan developed for the service set out a number of required achievements 
particularly in respect of creating capacity and development of expertise. Both of 
these and other identified priorities have been achieved.  

1.2 The Service Level Agreement which formed part of the Joint Service Agreement 
identified a number of key priorities around community safety, health, the 
environment and the protection of consumers, residents and businesses from unfair 
and unsafe commercial practices. The plan set out at Appendix B addresses these 
key priorities. 

1.3 A key theme of the plan is the use of the National Intelligence Approach to tackling 
crime and related matters. This model suggests that in any approach there are 
elements of intelligence analysis and preventative measures that support the 
enforcement function. The plan is written to develop this approach. Before this plan 
sits specific tasking operations which are managed at service level and translate 
the strategic aims of the service into delivery.  

1.4 The Food Enforcement Plan incorporated in the Delivery Plan sets out our priorities 
in relation to the delivery of the food standards enforcement function which includes 
food quality and labelling. It also sets out our priorities for work on Animal Feed as 
this along with Animal Welfare enforcement is seen as crucial to protecting animal 
and human health.   

1.5 For the first time the plan also brings forward a new policy on business advice. The 
Policy allows for the development of Primary Authority arrangements as well as 
setting out clearly our charging policy. In essence all business start ups will be able 
to receive an initial 5 hours advice free of charge.  This is crucial at this time when 
new enterprises are being actively encouraged and are seen as a key part of 
economic recovery.  

2. Equalities Impact Assessment Outcomes 

2.1 The parties consulted on the plan in its entirety are the Joint Service Review Panel 
and members of staff from the Trading Standards Service. Many of the objectives in 
the plan are built on long standing programmes at work which are designed to 
protect members of the community most susceptible to fraud and other consumer 
related crime.  

2.2 In terms of enforcement actions taken by the service these are considered in the 
context of the Human Rights Act and prosecutions take account the approved 
Enforcement Policy which applies both the evidential and public interest tests set 
out in the Code for Crown Prosecutors. Oversight independent of the investigating 
officer is present when decisions on legal actions are made.    

Page 3



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 31 May 2012 

3. Conclusion 

3.1 The Delivery Plan sets out in clear terms how the service will protect residents and 
businesses from unfair and unlawful trading practices. The service believes it 
strikes the right balance between prevention and enforcement. We also believe it 
reflects current resource availability but there is an acceptance that things can 
change and prioritisation is a key feature going forward.  

3.2 It is therefore recommended that the plan and policies contained therein be 
Approved.  

Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Equality Impact Assessment – Stage 1 
Appendix B – Trading Standards Strategic Delivery Plan 2012/14 

Page 4



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 31 May 2012 

APPENDIX A 
 

Equality Impact Assessment – Stage One 
 

Name of item being assessed: Trading Standards Strategic Delivery Plan 
2012-14 

Version and release date of 
item (if applicable): 

 

Owner of item being assessed: Sean Murphy 

Name of assessor: Sean Murphy 

Date of assessment: 16th May 2012 

 
1. What are the main aims of the item? 

Set out the priorities of the Trading Standards Service for 2012/14 
 

2. Note which groups may be affected by the item, consider how they may be 
affected and what sources of information have been used to determine 
this. (Please demonstrate consideration of all strands – age; disability; gender 
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity; race; 
religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation) 

Group 
Affected What might be the effect? Information to support this. 

Local 
Residents 

Provide protection from unfair 
trading activity along with 
measures increase community 
safety and protect public health   

Set out in plan 

Local 
Businesses 

Provide protection from unfair 
trading practices Set out in plan 

Elderly and 
other 
residents 
vulnerable to 
Financial 
Related 
Crime 

The plan contains specific 
measures aimed at protecting this 
particularly susceptible to fraud 
and other financial crime 

Set out in plan 

Young 
people 

The plan contains measures to 
protect the health and wellbeing of 
young people i.e. prevention of the 
sales of illegal age restricted 
products 

Set out in plan 

   

   

Further comments relating to the item: 

Page 5



 

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 31 May 2012 

 
 
3. Result (please tick by double-clicking on relevant box and click on ‘checked’) 

 High Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact Assessment 

 Medium Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact 
Assessment 

 Low Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact Assessment 

 No Relevance - This does not need to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact 
Assessment 

 
For items requiring a Stage 2 equality impact assessment, begin the planning of this 
now, referring to the equality impact assessment guidance and Stage 2 template. 
 
4. Identify next steps as appropriate: 

Stage Two required  

Owner of Stage Two assessment:  

Timescale for Stage Two assessment:  

Stage Two not required:  
 
Name: Sean Murphy Date: 16th May 2012 
 

Page 6



This service is provided by West Berkshire Council in 
Partnership with Wokingham Borough Council

Strategic Delivery Plan
2012/2014

Page 7



Page 8



Contents

1. Foreword 4

2. Introduction 5

3. Trading Standards Service – Context 6
3.1  Local Context 6
3.2  Regional Context 7
3.3  National Context 7
3.4  Service Vision 8
3.5  Service Mission 8
3.6  Strategic Values of the Service 9
3.7  Delivery Values 9
3.8  Key Delivery Partners 10

4. Key outcomes for Service Delivery 20012/14 11

5. Appendix A - Trading Standards Food Enforcement Plan 18

6. Appendix B – Enforcement Approach to sales of Age Restricted Products 26

7. Appendix C – Business Advice Policy 27

8. Glossary 28

Page 9



Page 10



1. Foreword
This is the second Strategic Delivery Plan for the new Joint West Berkshire and Wokingham
Trading Standards Service.  Two years on from the development of the shared service there
is now a completely integrated service delivering across a single geographical area to a
common set of policies. 

The best of both the previous single services have been adopted with the former
Wokingham quality management systems combining with the flare that West Berkshire had
developed for innovative approaches to tackling areas of crime and consumer detriment.
The critical mass which was sought has been achieved in terms of staffing as have the ability
to provide specialisation in areas of law and support for a comprehensive training
programme. The service now employs three Trainee Trading Standards Officers and a
number of other members of staff are currently broadening their skills base by qualifying in
additional areas.   

As with the previous plan there is a strong emphasis on maintaining a level playing field for
local businesses and a fair and safe trading environment for residents and visitors.  There
remain measures to effectively tackle rogue trading, doorstep crime and unfair business
practices. The plan does however see public health move further to the fore with a high
priority being given to control of alcohol and tobacco as well as food and agriculture
standards. Other traditional trading standards areas such as intellectual property crime,
product safety, weights and measures, road traffic enforcement and credit also feature
strongly. All will be complemented by advice and support for businesses and consumers.

The key to delivery is effective working relationships with our many internal as well as
external partners such as the Thames Valley Police, Berkshire West PCT, Defra, HMRC and
Trading Standards South East the effectiveness of the service is greatly enhanced by co-
ordination and efficient use of resources. This has never been more important as now with
the transfer of Public Health to local authorities and the ‘Consumer Landscape Review’
which sees many former national enforcement functions transfer to local Trading Standards
Services.  

Two years on from the emergence of the shared Trading Standards Service we are confident
that the measures set out in the plan will ensure that the communities in Wokingham and
West Berkshire have the protection of a modern, sustainable Trading Standards Service.  

Cllr Hilary Cole Cllr UllaKarin Clark
Executive Member Executive Member
West Berkshire Council Wokingham Borough Council

4
Page 11



2. Introduction   
The purpose of this is to set out in clear terms for the communities of Wokingham and West
Berkshire how the new combined Trading Standards Service intends to deliver on, and
contribute to, the key local, regional and national priorities. The plan also encompasses
Food Enforcement Plan (Appendix A), the Policy for Enforcement of Age Restricted
Products (Appendix B) and a new Policy on Business Advice Provision (Appendix C) to
reflect changes in legislation.

The proposals set out in the plan are related to a number of key shared local priorities the
most relevant of which are as follows:

� Reducing Crime / Protecting Vulnerable Residents 
� Protecting the Environment
� Supporting the Local Economy
� Improving Public Health

Ultimately the Trading Standards Service is a law enforcement service responsible for
overseeing the enforcement of around 100 pieces of primary legislation and several
thousand regulations and standards. 

“Our work on doorstep
crime, food, scams and
age restricted
products is never far
from the public eye”

5
Page 12



3. The Trading Standards Service Context
3.1 Local Context

These are difficult times with the economic downturn. In times such as this the Trading Standards
Service has an important role in protecting communities from the scourge of unscrupulous and
unfair trading whilst assisting reputable businesses to develop and hopefully thrive.

The Service also has a particular role in protecting the most vulnerable in our society who are very
often the first victims of trading crime. Tackling these issues needs a comprehensive approach.
Clearly the service has its enforcement role but it also has a preventative role. This is clearly
demonstrated with our work on the Buy with Confidence Approved Trader Scheme and the
Support with Confidence Approved Personal Assistant Scheme. People wanting to make the right
consumer decisions, to avoid crime and to be protected are looking to be pointed in the right
direction. The Trading Standards Service is well placed to do this. 

Prevention and Enforcement are only two of the three limbs of the National Intelligence Model
approach to tackling crime. The third, and perhaps most important is intelligence. There is no
doubt that in these times of tightening resource it is important to make the best use of every piece
of resource available. The gathering and analysis of intelligence allows us to do this. There is little
point in auditing one area of business practice if there are no issues when precious resource could
be spent tackling consumer or business detriment in another. We need to analyse the thousands of
pieces of information that come our way every year whether they be consumer complaints,
business reports of malpractice or intelligence reports from key partners such as the Police. We
have made a start on this but the development of this is a key priority for the service.          

The issue of partnership working cannot be underestimated. There are many key and obvious
partners such as Thames Valley Police and Trading Standards South East authorities but there are
also many more local partners such as Citizens Advice, Community Savings and Loans (CSL) and
Social Landlords who provide valuable sources of intelligence or in the case of CSL community
based solutions. A number of key partners are identified in 3.7 below.

The next twelve months will see the transfer of the Public Health function from Berkshire West
PCT to the Council. This provides an important opportunity for the service to integrate Public
Health yet further into its working and also, along with colleagues from Environmental Health, to
position itself as a delivery mechanism for public health outcomes as it has for many years on youth
smoking and drinking. Accident prevention, nutrition and obesity and mental health issues resulting
from crime and debt are all areas where trading standards can make a major contribution. The
Service already manages the Tobacco Control Alliance on behalf of the PCT and the Berkshire West
Council’s. 

The National Intelligence Model to tackling issues combined with a clear partnership based
approach means that staff from the Trading Standards Service can already be found in Schools and
Children Centres in contrast to, and importantly in addition to, their traditional law enforcement
role in interview rooms and law courts.

6
Page 13



3.2 Regional Context

Trading Standards South East Limited (TSSEL) involves 19 Local Authority Trading Standards
Services in the South East Region working together through a joint business plan towards the
common goals of improving efficiency, supporting local authority trading standards services and
developing and sharing expertise. 

West Berkshire and Wokingham Trading Standards Service are considered a significant contributor
to the regional model and integral in the formation and development of the company limited by
guarantee that oversees the model. The Trading Standards Manager is a Director of the Company
and West Berkshire and Wokingham Council’s are both Members of the Company.

We are represented on all of the focus groups which share information on specialist areas ranging
from food to animal health and from safety to fair trading. We are also major contributors to the
delivery of grant funded initiatives such as tobacco control and important food sampling and
analysis. Recently we have bid for and received additional funding to carry out level one (national)
investigation work where we have offences in our area but where there are further offences at
regional and at national level. 

Some of the other regional priorities to which the Service contributes include Support with
Confidence, Buy with Confidence, credit-licence checks on behalf of the Office of Fair Trading
(OFT), working with the Illegal Money Lending Team, sharing intelligence and providing support
for various training initiatives.

3.3 National Context 

Eighteen months ago HM Government announced a major review of what it entitled the
‘consumer landscape’ i.e. the work that went on to protect consumers from unfair practices and
the work which allowed consumers to make the right decisions. The main players in this had
primarily been the Department of Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS), OFT and Trading Standards
at regional and local level. 

In essence the outcome of this review is to put two bodies centre stage in the delivery of the new
‘Consumer Landscape’. Citizens Advice is set to take the lead role in advice provision and in April
took control of the former Consumer Direct helpline from OFT and will eventually take over the
statutory advocate role of Consumer Focus. Trading Standards Services are to become the single
face of enforcement with many of the functions currently being carried out by OFT transferring to
trading standards along with the policy setting and funding provided by BIS. This will be overseen
by a newly formed National Trading Standards Board (NTSB) made up of the Chairs of each
regional grouping. The remit of NTSB will include illegal money lending, the development and
delivery of a national intelligence database, cross border enforcement and the commissioning of
national initiatives and investigations. The delivery will all be carried out by trading standards at
regional or local level.  

The role of the former ‘quango’ the Local Better Regulation Office (LBRO) has now been
incorporated into BIS in the form of the Better Regulation Delivery Office. They still have a
statutory role to improve delivery of local regulatory enforcement, setting priorities and the
management of the Primary Authority function. The latter is an area that West Berkshire Trading
Standards Service will seek to offer through the Business Advice Policy set out at Appendix C.          

7
Page 14



3.4 Service Vision

“To be an excellent and continually improving service that provides a high level of protection for
consumers and reputable businesses’. 

Our service vision is to improve the quality of life for all West Berkshire and Wokingham residents
by creating a safe and fair trading environment where consumers are protected and businesses can
thrive and develop. We want West Berkshire and Wokingham to be free of rogue traders and for
residents to have a high level of protection 

In business terms we acknowledge that the success of the local economy is a key aspect to the
success of the local community. We therefore will aim to support, educate and inform local
businesses both on a re-active and pro-active basis. This plan contains a number of elements of this
type of work. We also feel efforts to achieve high levels of consumer and community protection
should be rewarded and this is demonstrated through schemes such as the ‘Responsible Alcohol
and Tobacco Retailer’ scheme, ‘Buy with Confidence’ and ‘Support with Confidence’ which is
managed by Trading Standards in conjunction with Adult Social Care services in Wokingham and
West Berkshire.

3.5 Service Mission   

Our mission is to ensure that:

� Every person in Wokingham and West Berkshire will be in a position to make informed 
decisions about their purchases of goods and services and understand their rights and 
responsibilities. 

� Business in Wokingham and West Berkshire will achieve compliance through self regulation 
as far as possible and that intervention is kept to a minimum allowing the business to thrive 
and prosper.

� The health, wellbeing and safety of the community is preserved. .      

“We will support new
businesses by proactively
seeking them out and
where appropriate
offering advice.“

8
Page 15



In order to make the vision become a reality:

� We will seek to create equality by ensuring that all consumers understand where they 
obtain advice and how they can exercise their rights. Importantly we will seek to give 
them the confidence to do so and where appropriate provide direct assistance.

� We will support new businesses by proactively seeking them out and where appropriate
offering advice. We will seek to ensure that all businesses know where they can seek 
support and that they have the confidence to do so in the knowledge that the trading 
standards service will be impartial and pragmatic.

� We will adopt responsive and innovative approaches to enforcement to drive out 
illegal trading

� Our service will continue to improve in line with the outcomes and recommendations 
from self-assessment against national standards including Quality Mark for Case 
Management which was re-awarded in 2012. 

3.6 Strategic Values of the Service

We have a set of strategic values that form the bedrock of our service delivery. These strategic
values are:

� Objectivity in decision making
� The desire to meet the needs of the Community  
� An approach to service delivery which is Professional on every level 

They are entirely conducive to the delivery of a modern regulatory service and fit with the legal
framework in which we operate.

3.7 Delivery Values

In addition to the strategic values we have service specific values that are an expression of what
we believe and what we stand for. They underpin our objectives and strategies and form a
reference point for all we do. In summary we believe in:

� The role that legal compliance pays in protecting society
� Helping people to help themselves whilst protecting the most vulnerable
� The need to ensure that all people are treated equally
� The need to be flexible, innovative and responsive to changing priorities 

and opportunities
� Striving for excellence and continuous improvement
� Concentrating on outcomes 
� Investing in our staff as our key resource 

9
Page 16



10

3.8 Key Delivery Partners

In addition to internal delivery partners such as the Safer Communities team, Highways, Adult
Social Care, Legal Services etc. there are a number of key external delivery partners that have been
identified in the process of drawing up this strategy. These are:

Partner Area of Existing or Potential Joint Working

Residents and Businesses Intelligence
Thames Valley Police Sharing Intelligence

Enforcement
Specific operations e.g. Operation Precious, 
Operation Drinksafe

Berkshire West PCT Berkshire West Tobacco Control Alliance
Public Health initiatives around alcohol, tobacco and nutrition

Trading Standards South East See 3.2 above

Parish Councils Sharing Intelligence
Enforcement

HMRC Counterfeiting
Smuggling

Citizens Advice Citizens Advice Consumer Line
Intelligence
Support for vulnerable clients

Illegal Money Lending Team Enforcement

This is not an exhaustive list and more work will be done in the delivery process to identify other
key partners.

Page 17



11

Pri
ori

ty 
Ar

ea:
 En

vir
on

me
nt 

and
 Sa

fet
y

Ta
rge

t 

Re
du

ce
 th

e h
arm

 ca
us

ed
 by

Go
od

s V
eh

icl
es

Fly
-ti

pp
ing

Re
du

ce
 th

e e
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

im
pa

ct 
of 

co
ns

um
er

 go
od

s

En
su

re
 sa

fe 
us

ag
e a

nd
 sa

le
of:

  

Pe
tro

leu
m

Ex
plo

siv
es

Po
iso

ns

Pr
ev

en
tio

n

�
Pro

vid
e p

rev
en

tat
ive

 ad
vic

e 
to 

loc
al b

usi
ne

sse
s

�
Pre

ven
tat

ive
 sig

nag
e in

 
we

igh
t re

str
ict

ion
 ar

eas
�

Pro
vid

e a
dv

ice
 to

 oc
cas

ion
al

dri
ver

s th
rou

gh 
veh

icle
 hi

re 
co

mp
ani

es 

�
Pro

vid
e a

dv
ice

 to
 

bu
sin

ess
es 

on
 co

mp
lian

ce 
wi

th 
pac

kag
ing

 law
s

�
Cr

eat
e a

n u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f 
gre

en
 cla

im
s 

�
En

sur
e a

ll li
cen

ce 
ho

lde
rs 

are
 cle

ar 
of 

leg
al 

req
uir

em
en

ts

Int
ell

ige
nc

e

�
Co

mp
lain

ts f
rom

 pa
ris

h
Co

un
cils

 / R
esi

de
nts

�
Pre

vio
us 

che
cks

�
Ro

ll o
ut 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Lo

rry
 W

atc
h S

che
me

s

�
Sh

are
 in

tel
lige

nce
 w

ith
 

Wa
ste

 th
rou

gh 
ID

B t
o

ide
nti

fy 
link

s w
ith

 
‘ro

gue
 tra

din
g’ a

cti
vit

y

En
for

ce
me

nt

�
Ca

rry
 ou

t 1
4 m

ob
ile 

che
cks

�
Att

en
d m

ult
i ag

en
cy 

che
cks

�
Ca

rry
 ou

t 3
0 W

R c
he

cks
 pe

r 
ann

um
 

�
Tes

t a
ll w

eig
hb

rid
ges

 an
nu

ally
 

and
 RT

A b
rid

ges
 six

 m
on

thl
y 

�
Ca

rry
 ou

t jo
int

 en
for

cem
en

t 
che

ck 
wi

th 
wa

ste
 en

for
cem

en
t

sta
ff t

o r
ed

uce
 im

pac
t o

f ill
ega

l
dis

po
sal

 

�
Pac

kag
ing

 Au
dit

s
�

Ch
eck

s o
n a

ccu
rac

y o
f g

ree
n 

cla
im

s
�

En
sur

e c
om

plia
nce

 w
ith

 
En

erg
y p

erf
orm

anc
e 

cer
tifi

cat
ion

 ru
les

�
Ins

pe
ct 

all 
filli

ng 
sta

tio
ns 

ann
ual

ly
�

Ins
pe

ct 
oth

er 
PL

 ho
lde

rs 
eve

ry
2 y

ear
s

�
Vis

it a
ll n

ew
 lic

en
ce 

ho
lde

rs
�

Vis
it e

xp
los

ive
s li

cen
ce 

/ 
reg

istr
ati

on
 ho

lde
rs 

wh
ere

 
pre

vio
us 

pro
ble

ms

Page 18



12

Pri
ori

ty 
Ar

ea:
 Fa

ir a
nd

 Sa
fe 

Tra
din

g E
nvi

ron
me

nt
Pr

ior
ity

 A
re

a
Pr

od
uc

t S
afe

ty

We
igh

ts 
an

d F
air

 Tr
ad

ing

Lo
nd

on
 20

12

Su
pp

or
t f

or
 C

on
su

me
rs 

an
d

Bu
sin

ess
es

Pr
ev

en
tio

n
�

Su
pp

ort
 na

tio
nal

 sa
fet

y 
cam

pai
gns

 e.
g: f

ire
wo

rks
�

Co
nti

nu
e t

o s
up

po
rt t

he
 

po
rts

 an
d E

RT
S p

roj
ect

s

�
Ra

ise
 aw

are
ne

ss 
of 

iss
ue

s 
aro

un
d o

n-l
ine

 sa
les

 w
ith

 
co

nsu
me

rs 
and

 bu
sin

ess
es

�
Ra

ise
 aw

are
ne

ss 
am

on
gst

 
pu

blic
 of

 ne
ed

 no
t to

 
sup

po
rt i

llic
it p

rod
uct

s

�
Bu

y w
ith

 Co
nfi

de
nce

�
Su

pp
ort

 w
ith

 Co
nfi

de
nce

�
Pro

mo
tio

n o
f S

erv
ice

 
ava

ilab
le –

 im
pro

ved
 ac

ces
s

�
Im

pro
ved

 W
eb

site
�

Tra
inin

g f
or 

ret
aile

rs 
car

 
de

ale
rs 

etc
. re

: C
PR

Int
ell

ige
nc

e
�

En
co

ura
ge 

rep
ort

ing
 of

 
kn

ow
n i

lleg
al a

nd
 un

saf
e 

pro
du

cts

�
En

co
ura

ge 
rep

ort
ing

 of
 

ille
gal

 pr
od

uct
s

�
Co

nsi
de

r In
tel

 fro
m 

ID
A 

oth
er 

sou
rce

s

En
for

ce
me

nt
�

Int
elli

gen
ce 

led
 sa

mp
ling

 
pro

gra
mm

e
�

Im
po

rte
rs

�
Tar

get
ed

 in
spe

cti
on

s –
 

inc
lud

ing
 te

chn
ica

l fil
es

�
Tes

t p
urc

has
ing

  
�

Hig
h r

isk
 in

spe
cti

on
s

�
Ve

rifi
cat

ion
s

�
Ins

pe
cti

on
s fo

llow
ing

 
co

mp
lain

ts
�

Co
nsi

de
rat

ion
 of

 au
dit

s
�

We
igh

bri
dg

es
�

Bu
lk f

ue
l

�
En

for
ce 

rel
eva

nt 
leg

isla
tio

n a
t 

loc
al l

eve
l

�
Pro

vid
e s

up
po

rt t
o r

egi
on

al 
en

for
cem

en
t

Page 19



13

Pri
ori

ty 
Ar

ea:
 Pr

ote
cti

ng 
the

 Vu
lne

rab
le a

nd
 Re

du
cin

g C
rim

e a
nd

 D
iso

rde
r   

 

Ta
rge

t 

Re
du

ce
 th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f r
og

ue
tra

din
g a

nd
 do

or
ste

p c
rim

e

Ra
ise

 aw
are

ne
ss 

of 
sca

ms
an

d p
re

ve
nt

 pe
op

le
be

co
mi

ng
 re

pe
at 

vic
tim

s

Re
du

ce
 In

tel
lec

tu
al

Pr
op

er
ty 

Cr
im

e

Pr
ev

en
tio

n

�
Pu

blic
ity

�
Co

ld 
Ca

llin
g C

on
tro

l Z
on

es
�

Bu
ild 

link
s w

ith
 sa

feg
uar

din
g

ser
vic

es
�

Pro
mo

te 
BW

C a
nd

 SW
C t

o 
rep

uta
ble

 bu
sin

ess
 an

d 
co

nsu
me

rs
�

Aw
are

ne
ss 

tra
inin

g a
nd

 
init

iat
ive

s 

�
Wo

rk 
wi

th 
Ho

me
 Ca

re 
Wo

rke
rs

�
Pu

blic
ity

�
Aw

are
ne

ss 
tra

inin
g a

nd
 

init
iat

ive
s fo

r c
om

mu
nit

ies

�
Ro

ll o
ut 

No
 IP

 Cr
im

e Z
on

es
acr

oss
 Be

rks
hir

e W
est

�
Ad

vic
e P

ack
s fo

r B
usi

ne
sse

s
�

Pu
blic

 Aw
are

ne
ss 

Ca
mp

aig
ns 

and
 pu

blic
ity

Int
ell

ige
nc

e

�
De

vel
op

 lin
ks 

wi
th 

Po
lice

�
Re

gio
nal

 In
tel

 U
nit

�
Co

nsu
me

r D
ire

ct
�

Pu
blic

 an
d 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d w

atc
h

�
Em

be
d r

egi
on

al 
int

elli
gen

ce 
dat

aba
se 

as 
an 

en
for

cem
en

t to
ol 

�
Ro

ll o
ut 

Ba
nk

ing
 

Pro
toc

ol

�
Co

mm
un

ity
 w

ork
ers

 to
 

ide
nti

fy 
rep

eat
 vic

tim
s

�
Ro

ll o
ut 

Ba
nk

ing
 

Pro
toc

ol 
wi

th 
ban

ks 
and

 
Po

st O
ffic

es

�
Mo

nit
ori

ng 
of 

eB
ay 

and
 

Au
cti

on
 Sit

es
�

Bu
sin

ess
es

�
Pu

blic
 / C

D

En
for

ce
me

nt

�
Do

ors
tep

 Cr
im

e P
atr

ols
 

mi
nim

um
 – 

2 p
er 

mo
nth

�
Inv

est
iga

tio
n o

f co
mp

lain
ts

�
Ra

pid
 re

spo
nse

 – 
usu

ally
 

wi
thi

n o
ne

 ho
ur

�
Joi

nt 
op

era
tio

ns 
wi

th 
Th

am
es 

val
ley

 Po
lice

 

�
Re

fer
ral

s to
 O

FT
 / S

eri
ou

s 
Or

gan
ise

d C
rim

e A
gen

cy
�

Inv
est

iga
tio

ns

�
Tar

get
ed

 su
rve

ys 
– I

nte
rne

t, 
Ma

rke
ts, 

Ca
r B

oo
t S

ale
s

�
Wo

rk 
wi

th 
TV

P o
n t

arg
ets

 of
 

joi
nt 

int
ere

st

Page 20



14

Pri
ori

ty 
Ar

ea:
 Pr

ote
cti

ng 
the

 Vu
lne

rab
le a

nd
 Re

du
cin

g C
rim

e a
nd

 D
iso

rde
r   

 

Ta
rge

t 

Re
du

ce
 ve

hic
le 

re
lat

ed
cri

me

St
op

 un
law

ful
 cr

ed
it

ac
tiv

ity
 an

d p
ro

mo
te

alt
er

na
tiv

e s
ou

rce
s o

f s
afe

bo
rro

wi
ng

Pr
ev

en
tio

n

�
Ra

ise
 pu

blic
 aw

are
ne

ss 
of 

iss
ue

s s
urr

ou
nd

ing
 sa

le a
nd

 
pu

rch
ase

 of
 se

co
nd

 ha
nd

 
veh

icle
s 

�
Ru

n t
rai

nin
g c

ou
rse

s fo
r c

ar 
de

ale
rs 

�
Co

nti
nu

e t
o s

up
po

rt 
Be

rks
hir

e C
om

mu
nit

y 
Sav

ing
s a

nd
 Lo

ans
�

Co
nsi

de
r ta

kin
g u

p a
 Bo

ard
 

pla
ce

�
Wo

rk 
wi

th 
RS

Ls 
to 

sup
po

rt 
BS

L p
roj

ect
�

Fo
rm

al l
ink

s w
ith

 CA
Bx

�
Tar

get
ed

 co
mm

un
ity

 ille
gal

 
mo

ne
y le

nd
ing

 ev
en

ts

Int
ell

ige
nc

e

�
Co

mp
lain

ts
�

Po
lice

�
Re

gis
ter

ed
 So

cia
l 

Lan
dlo

rds
�

Co
mm

un
ity

 W
ard

en
s

�
Cit

ize
ns 

Ad
vic

e B
ure

aux
�

Ille
gal

 m
on

ey 
len

din
g 

tea
m

En
for

ce
me

nt

�
Inv

est
iga

te 
co

mp
lain

ts
�

Ca
rry

 ou
t ro

uti
ne

 fo
rec

ou
rt 

che
cks

�
Mo

nit
or 

int
ern

et 
sel

ling
 

act
ivit

y
�

Ca
rry

 ou
t c

he
cks

 w
ith

 ve
hic

le 
ins

pe
cto

r to
 ex

am
ine

 sa
fet

y o
f 

sec
on

d h
and

 ve
hic

les
�

En
sur

e c
om

plia
nce

 w
ith

 
Ve

hic
le (

Cr
im

es)
 Ac

t in
 

res
pe

ct 
of 

nu
mb

er 
pla

te 
ma

nu
fac

tur
ing

 an
d v

eh
icle

 
bre

aki
ng 

�
Joi

nt 
En

for
cem

en
t w

ith
 Ille

gal
 

Mo
ne

y L
en

din
g T

eam

Page 21



15

Pri
ori

ty 
Ar

ea:
 H

eal
th 

and
 W

ellb
ein

g

Ta
rge

t 

En
su

rin
g f

oo
d m

ee
ts 

leg
al

sta
nd

ard
s, 

lab
ell

ing
 is

ac
cu

rat
e a

nd
 co

ns
um

er
s

ha
ve

 th
e i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 to
ma

ke
 in

for
me

d c
ho

ice
s

Le
ad

 th
e a

lco
ho

l a
nd

to
ba

cco
 st

rat
eg

y i
n r

esp
ec

t
of 

ille
ga

l sa
les

Pr
ev

en
tio

n

�
Nu

trit
ion

 an
d l

abe
llin

g 
adv

ice
 fo

r v
uln

era
ble

 ad
ult

s 
and

 ch
ildr

en
�

Pre
-m

ark
eti

ng 
adv

ice
 to

 
loc

al b
usi

ne
sse

s
�

En
co

ura
ge 

de
vel

op
me

nt 
and

 pr
om

oti
on

 of
 he

alt
hy 

eat
ing

 op
tio

ns

�
Pro

vid
e t

rai
nin

g f
or 

ret
aile

rs
and

 sta
ff

�
Ad

mi
nis

ter
 th

e A
lco

ho
l an

d 
To

bac
co

 Re
spo

nsi
ble

 
Re

tai
ler

 Sc
he

me
�

Ra
ise

 aw
are

ne
ss 

of 
pro

xy 
sal

es
�

Wo
rk 

wi
th 

bu
sin

ess
 to

 ra
ise

 
aw

are
ne

ss 
of 

the
 sa

le o
f 

illic
it t

ob
acc

o
�

Wo
rk 

wi
th 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 to

 
rai

se 
aw

are
ne

ss 
of 

he
alt

h 
and

 pe
rso

nal
 ris

ks
�

Ma
nag

e t
he

 Be
rks

hir
e W

est
 

To
bac

co
 Co

ntr
ol 

All
ian

ce 

Int
ell

ige
nc

e

�
Fo

od
 St

and
ard

s A
gen

cy 
foo

d a
ler

ts a
nd

 
int

elli
gen

ce 
bu

llet
ins

�
De

fra
�

Re
gio

nal
 an

d n
ati

on
al 

sur
vey

s
�

En
co

ura
ge 

en
for

cem
en

t 
of 

foo
d f

rau
d a

nd
 

co
un

ter
fei

tin
g

�
Co

mp
lain

ts
�

Sch
oo

ls
�

Mu
lti 

age
ncy

 Al
co

ho
l 

Ac
tio

n G
rou

ps
�

Po
lice

�
En

co
ura

ge 
rep

ort
ing

 of
 

ille
gal

 sa
les

En
for

ce
me

nt

�
Ins

pe
cti

on
 of

 hi
gh 

ris
k f

oo
d 

pre
mi

ses
�

Tar
get

ed
 au

dit
s o

f o
the

r 
pre

mi
ses

�
Tar

get
ed

 sa
mp

ling
 pr

og
ram

me
 

�
Wo

rk 
wi

th 
pro

vid
ers

 of
 fo

od
s 

aim
ed

 at
 vu

lne
rab

le g
rou

ps 
to 

en
sur

e n
utr

itio
nal

 sta
nd

ard
s 

me
t

�
Pla

ce 
spe

cia
l em

ph
asi

s o
n f

oo
d 

fra
ud

 an
d c

ou
nte

rfe
itin

g

�
Tes

t p
urc

has
ing

�
Illic

it t
ob

acc
o s

ale
s 

en
for

cem
en

t
�

En
sur

e v
en

din
g m

ach
ine

 ba
n 

co
mp

lied
 w

ith
�

En
sur

e im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f 
po

int
 of

 sa
le p

rom
oti

on
 ba

n
�

Sta
rt e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e 

for
 pr

ox
y s

ale
s

Page 22



16

Pri
ori

ty 
Ar

ea:
 H

eal
th 

and
 W

ellb
ein

g c
on

t.

Ta
rge

t 

En
for

ce
 ne

wl
y a

ssi
gn

ed
pr

ov
isio

ns
 su

ch
 as

 th
e

Re
gu

lat
ion

 of
 Su

n b
ed

s a
nd

Ta
tto

oin
g o

f M
ino

rs 

En
su

re
 th

at 
fer

tili
ser

s a
nd

an
im

al 
fee

d a
re

 sa
fe 

an
d

me
et 

leg
al 

sta
nd

ard
s 

En
su

re
 th

at 
an

im
al 

we
lfa

re
sta

nd
ard

s a
re

 m
ain

tai
ne

d
an

d h
ea

lth
 pr

ot
ec

tio
n

me
asu

re
s a

re
 in

 pl
ac

e

Pr
ev

en
tio

n

�
Vis

it P
rem

ise
s to

 en
sur

e 
aw

are
ne

ss 
of 

co
ntr

ols
 an

d 
sys

tem
s a

re 
in 

pla
ce 

to 
en

sur
e c

om
plia

nce

�
Ma

int
ain

 re
gis

tra
tio

n o
f al

l 
fee

d b
usi

ne
sse

s
�

Pro
vid

e g
oo

d p
rac

tic
e 

gui
de

s to
 far

me
rs

�
Pro

vid
e a

dv
ice

 to
 liv

est
oc

k 
ke

ep
ers

�
Ma

int
ain

 co
nti

nge
ncy

 pl
ans

 
for

 co
mm

on
 an

d e
me

rgi
ng 

dis
eas

es
�

Ho
ld 

an 
ann

ual
 te

st o
f p

lan
s

Int
ell

ige
nc

e

�
En

co
ura

ge 
rep

ort
ing

 of
 

bre
ach

es.
�

In 
res

pe
ct 

of 
tat

too
ing

 – 
int

elli
gen

ce 
ex

cha
nge

 
wi

th 
Po

lice

�
FS

A m
ark

et 
sur

vei
llan

ce

�
Sh

are
 in

tel
lige

nce
 w

ith
 

De
fra

 Ve
ter

ina
ry 

Of
fice

rs
�

SE
LT

SA
 An

im
al H

eal
th 

Gr
ou

p
�

Ind
ust

ry 
pre

ss
�

Wo
rd 

of 
mo

uth
�

Pu
blic

 co
mp

lain
ts

En
for

ce
me

nt

�
Inv

est
iga

tin
g c

om
pla

int
s

�
Ca

rry
 ou

t ta
rge

ted
 in

spe
cti

on
 

pro
gra

mm
e

�
Wh

ere
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 ca

rry
 ou

t 
sam

plin
g a

nd
 te

stin
g

�
Ca

rry
 ou

t ri
sk 

ass
ess

ed
 on

-
far

m 
ins

pe
cti

on
s

�
Ins

pe
ct 

we
lfar

e o
f an

im
als

 in
 

tra
nsi

t
�

Re
co

rd 
all 

mo
vem

en
ts

�
En

sur
e li

cen
ce 

co
nd

itio
ns 

are
 

me
t a

t a
nim

al g
ath

eri
ngs

Page 23



17
Page 24



APPENDIX A

WOKINGHAM AND WEST BERKSHIRE TRADING STANDARDS SERVICE
FOOD ENFORCEMENT PLAN 

Contents:

1 Introduction
2 The Trading Standards Food Service
3 Demands on the Service
4 Food Service Objectives 
5 Working with Business
6 Food and Feed Activities
7 Food Incidents
8 Liaison with other organisations
9 Quality Assessment
10 Resources
11 Review of the Food Law Enforcement Plan

18
Page 25



Appendix A

1. Introduction
1.1 The purpose of this plan is to set out the scope of the combined West Berkshire and
Wokingham Trading Standards Service in relation to the way that it regulates and protects the
food chain from ‘farm to fork’. 

1.2 A variety of food production, processing and marketing industries exist in the combined
administrative area producing a wide range of food and animal feedstuffs requiring a high level
of regulatory competence and activity to ensure relevant standards are maintained.

1.3 The Food Law Enforcement Plan for the Service is detailed below and includes
objectives, demands on the food service, and issues including food complaints, inspections and
sampling.
.
1.4 The Trading Standards Service Plan 2012/14 (to which this is appended) links the
service values, aims and objectives to this plan. The broader plan also puts into context what
we are aiming to achieve. This plan needs to be read in the context of the wider strategic
delivery plan.

1.5 Finally the plan also builds upon the priorities set out by the Food Standards Agency in
their Corporate Plan as well as those arising from the development of the Local Area
Agreement. 

2. Scope of the Trading Standards Food Service
2.1 The Trading Standards Food Service has responsibility for the following areas of food
chain control and education:
� Ensuring the accuracy of food labels and descriptions applied to food
� Ensuring claims etc. made in the course of the marketing of food are accurate and legal
� Ensuring food standards are maintained
� Enforcement of Food Alerts relating to food standards or chemical contamination are 

responded to as appropriate
� Ensuring that legally required food hygiene standards are met at primary 

production points 
� Ensuring that legally required feed hygiene and compositional required standards are 

met throughout the supply chain and on farm 
� Ensuring that animal feed is appropriately labelled and marketed
� Ensuring businesses are appropriately advised
� Ensuring that consumers have the required knowledge base to make informed choices 

when purchasing food

19
Page 26



3. Demands on the Food Service
3.1 The Service offers confidential and impartial advice for businesses of West Berkshire
and Wokingham to help them avoid breaking the law inadvertently.  Dealing with complex
and technical enquiries along with inspecting and monitoring activities are essential parts of
the workload. 

3.2 In line with the Hampton Review the Food Standards Agency FSA has allowed local
authorities to adopt a more flexible and varied approach in developing a suitable strategy to
maintain compliance. As a result the team will continue to visit a number of high and medium
risk food premises but look to alternative enforcement strategies such as a self certificating to
deal with the low and non inspectable risk food premises. Audits will continue to be targeted
at nationally or locally recognised areas of concern.

3.3 Currently the Service has 2549 food premises on its database.  Of those premises, 32
are classified as high risk, 367 medium risk, 1003 low risk and 703 as having no inspectable
risk. The remainder is made up of unrated premises.  This figure changes on a yearly basis.  In
terms of feed premises there are 262 premises, 10 manufacturers and packers, 
4 distributors and 15 retailers.

3.4 The risk rating for each premise is assessed at each visit and by reference to events
such as levels of compliance, local risk and the category of individual businesses.  In addition
the Service will have regard to the principles of the Hampton Review, ensuring that no
inspection is conducted without a reason and local risk factoring is applied.

3.5 The Food Service provided is specific to the needs and nature of the area. As a
consequence time is spent on Home Authority responsibilities, (the principal is outlined
below) this includes allocating time to our major food producers.

3.6 We will also advise and seek compliance on highly specific labelling criteria. This will
include the traceability of foods and feeding stuffs and the declaration of foods which contain
allergens. 

“Ensuring the accuracy
of food labels and
descriptions applied 
to food”

20
Page 27



4. Food Safety Objectives 2011/13
4.1 The aim of the Service is to improve and protect public health by ensuring food quality
standards are met, the maintenance of market confidence in the food businesses in
Wokingham and West Berkshire. This is achieved by ensuring that consumers have access to
accurate information and they have the knowledge to make informed choices. It is the
responsibility of the service to ensure that food and drink produced and sold in Wokingham
and West Berkshire meets quality and chemical safety criteria wherever it is consumed. We
also ensure that our work is programmed to take account of the national and local agendas.

4.2 Key Objectives

� To ensure that we visit and advise our High and Medium Risk food businesses at a 
frequency based on the FSA criteria.

� To check the effectiveness of food management within local food businesses by 
sampling and audit. In doing so to pay particular attention to high priority areas such as 
nutrition and allergens.

� To contribute to the wider public health agenda through the promotion of healthier 
eating options.

� To raise awareness of food safety issues to local food businesses and residents.

� To respond to customer complaints and requests for our service

� To visit relevant primary producers to ensure compliance with the Food and Feed 
hygiene requirements. The frequency is based on the LACORS and FSA criteria.

5. Working with Business
5.1 Where the head office or controlling mind of a food business is located within the
Wokingham or West Berkshire area the Service has adopted them as Home Authority
companies. Where appropriate the Service will consider whether offering Primary Authority
Status may enhance delivery.  Both systems allow the authority to work closely with businesses
to establish procedures to ensure high standards are maintained in the production of safe and
accurately described food. The Service assists with food complaints relating to products
produced by the company which have become apparent outside the authority’s area. The
Service becomes a nationally recognised point of contact and liaison for all subsequent food
enquiries. 

5.2 We have implemented this principle by providing advice and information on the legality
of product ranges, packaging, composition, labelling and advertising.  This service is delivered
pro-actively during the inspection of premises and reactively in response to requests from
businesses and referrals from other agencies.

5.3 This approach provides support to local businesses in developing their products but
also helps to prevent potentially expensive non-compliance. 

21
Page 28



6. Food and Feed Activities
6.1 The Service produces its own annual sampling programme to establish the
effectiveness of the management of food standards in local businesses. The programme
reflects local and national trends. The plan is sufficiently flexible to take account of any areas
which require attention as they arise i.e. food incident warnings. The emphasis this year is on
four areas i.e. contamination, adulteration, nutritional composition and labelling. We anticipate
this will translate to approximately 200 food and feed samples.

6.2 This Authority partakes in regional and national sampling programmes and other
national initiatives as appropriate.

6.3 Analytical work for food is undertaken by the appointed Public Analysts which are:
Worcestershire County Council, Hampshire County Council, Kent County Council and
Staffordshire County Council. Worcestershire CC and Staffordshire CC also provide the
appointed Agricultural Analysts and Deputies.

7. Food Alerts
7.1 Food alerts are issued by the Foods Standards Agency (FSA) to all Food Authorities in
the country when a national food safety issue has arisen with a specific food product.

7.2 Food alerts are responded to as directed by the warning notification received from
the FSA and in accordance with the Code of Practice. All warnings are received by email and
any subsequent action taken is recorded and retained on file. This year we are going to
examine the basis of our response particularly in relation to follow up action.  

“Ensuring that 
claims such as organic
are accurate”

22
Page 29



8. Liaison with Other Organisations
8.1 We work closely with a number of organisations and to avoid duplication of effort
we have clear guidelines on who is responsible for what.

Partners include:

� Seventeen other Trading Standards authorities in the South East Region that 
together make up Trading Standards South East Limited TSSEL. Activities include 
liaising on all key Trading Standards issues, co-ordinated inspection, sampling and 
advice projects and sharing of information.

� Food Standards Agency activities include taking part in FSA sampling surveys, liaison 
where areas of work overlap and responding to requests for information.

� Members of both Councils are consulted prior to the plan being approved.

“Activities include 
liaising on all key
Trading Standards
issues, co-ordinated
inspection, sampling
and advice projects
and sharing of
information.”

23
Page 30



9. Quality Assessment
The teams aim to continually improve the level of service provided and procedures are
reviewed where necessary to incorporate identified improvements. 

10. Resources
10.1 In order to fulfil the proposals set out in this plan the following resources will be
allocated to food and feed enforcement and business and consumer education:

10.2 The planned expenditure to support these functions is follows:

Area Estimated Expenditure 

Food Standards Sampling £25K
Agriculture Sampling £10K

Staffing expenditure is difficult to extrapolate because there is no separate cost centre for
the trading standards food enforcement function. 

Area of Work Estimated Officer Days 
(Including Follow up Action)

Food Standards Inspections 80
Alternative Enforcement Strategies 30
Response to Food Alerts 10
Animal Feed Inspections 20
Food Hygiene at primary Production 20
Food Sampling 30
Feed sampling 10
Business Advice 20
Consumer Education 50

TOTAL 270

24
Page 31



11. Review of the Food Law Enforcement Plan
11.1 The objectives are regularly reviewed by the Lead Officer for Food and the
Trading Standards Manager. This is to ascertain whether objectives are being achieved and
any variations to be highlighted.

11.2 Areas for improvement are incorporated into the following year’s objectives, or
dealt with as soon as possible if there are no additional financial implications.

11.3 We have adopted a project-based approach in relation to food advice and
enforcement and the resources dedicated to food-related activities are appropriately
balanced against other regulatory activities.  

11.4 Areas for Development

Advancements have been made in the delivery of food law enforcement. There
have been examples of joined up working and cooperation with bodies such as TSSEL
where co-ordinated sampling is developed however there are areas identified where
development can still be beneficial. These include:

� Ensuring the national Food Sampling Surveillance System (FSS) is embedded in our
everyday approach to food and feed law enforcement.

� Ensuring that intelligence reports from the FSA and other sources direct our 
audit programme.

� Continual development of partnership working

11.5 Review against the Service Plan

Performance is monitored by the teams on a monthly basis.  Also, we will review the
content of the service plan to ensure it continues to meet the needs of our customers.

25
Page 32



26

Appendix B
ENFORCEMENT APPROACH TO SALES OF AGE RESTRICTED PRODUCTS
1. The Service proposes to continue to raise awareness in the wider community of the
issues relating to the misuse of age restricted products by young people and to seek the
support of the community in driving out illegal sales. Through the Tobacco Control Alliance,
the Schools Improvement Service and Operation Drinksafe we will also continue to engage
with young people in order to close the circle between education and regulation in relation to
products such as tobacco and alcohol.
2. The Service will continue to support and host the Berkshire West Tobacco Control
Alliance and oversee delivery of the Alliance’s key strategic objectives – one of which is
deterring young people from starting smoking.  
3. The Service will continue to advise retailers on how to best achieve compliance with
the legislation relating to the sale of age restricted products at the time of inspection of trade
premises. Additionally we will also encourage and support responsible retailing by offering the
popular and well received ‘Responsible Retailer Scheme’ 
4. The Service in conducting our enforcement work will continue to have regard to
intelligence whether from partner agencies or the wider community.
5. The Service will use powers such as the instigation of licence reviews or temporary
closure orders.   
6. The Service does consider there is a role for random checks on compliance to be
conducted through ‘test purchasing’ programmes of age restricted products using volunteer
young people. This is considered a crucial part of the enforcement programme. In carrying out
test purchasing steps to provide safeguards for both the young person and the trader are taken
including having regard to national guidelines. It also helps reinforce the message. Where
appropriate we will take legal or other action against traders and individuals in accordance with
the Council’s adopted Enforcement Policy. 

Page 33



APPENDIX C
BUSINESS ADVICE POLICY

1.0 Purpose

1.1 West Berkshire and Wokingham Councils are the enforcing authority for a wide
range of primary legislation functions. 

1.2 West Berkshire and Wokingham Councils carry out this duty by employing suitably
qualified and trained staff, who are authorised in writing to enforce the requirements of
the various pieces of legislation.

1.3 West Berkshire and Wokingham Councils arecommitted to promoting a vibrant
district.  In the current economic climate it is necessary to support businesses to help
promote economic growth.  

1.4 In addition to the long standing legislative functions the government has set out a
process which enables the Council to forge statutory partnerships with companies
primarily based in the West Berkshire and Wokingham area.  This is the Primary Authority
scheme. 

1.5 West Berkshire and Wokingham Councils recognise the value of having a
documented policy which sets out how these partnerships will be implemented and
regulated.

2.0 Policy Statement

2.1 West Berkshire and Wokingham Councils already subscribes to the Home
Authority Principle where the authority whereby the authority in which a business is
based will act as a conduit for any trading standards issues arising elsewhere. The
Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008 also allows local authorities to enter into
‘primary authority’ arrangements. This authority sees both systems have value and as
alternatives. The authority also understands the value of providing advice to SME’s as a
way of assisting economic development and encouraging healthy markets,

3.0 Approach

3.1 Supporting businesses is a key feature of the service aims of Trading Standards.
There will be ongoing pro-active work carried out to ensure businesses comply with all
relevant legislation, including routine inspections, sampling and educational initiatives.

3.2 Primary authority is designed to provide businesses with fairer local regulation, by
introducing a statutory agreement between Trading Standards and the business.

3.3 Officers use their professional judgement to balance the needs of the
person/community with the implications of the advice.

27
Page 34



28

3.4 Before any advice is given, an authorised officer will always aim to have the best
available information about the relevant legislation. Confidentiality will always be respected and
information will be handled in accordance with the West Berkshire Council security policy.

3.5 West Berkshire Council and Wokingham Councils Trading Standards Service will:

a) Respond to all requests for advice from all businesses, whether they have a primary
authority partnership or not.  This will be limited to five hours free when the business is not in
a primary authority partnership, not including signposting to other sources of advice.  Beyond 5
hours charging will be at the rate approved by Council.

b) Respond to all requests for information about local businesses in primary or home
authority authority partnerships from other Local Authorities.

c) Provide information and assistance to all interested parties in situations where product
safety is in issue, regardless of whether a primary authority or home authority agreement
exists or not.

d) Ensure the continued development of its officers and encourage officers to keep up to
date on relevant issues.

4.0 Roles and Responsibilities

4.1 The Trading Standards Manager is responsible for the implementation of the policy.

4.2 The Primary Authority Lead Officer is responsible for the planning, organisation and
subsequent monitoring of all aspects of the policy.

5.0 Quality Of The Service

5.1 We are committed to ensuring that a high standard of service is achieved including
good customer care throughout all areas of the service.

5.2 Quality of business advice will be monitored through normal line management
arrangements. 

5.3 To ensure a high standard of competence amongst all authorised officers, we will
provide access to all relevant training opportunities and reference materials as necessary.

6.0 Monitoring the Service

6.1 Having set the required standards for the level of service, it is necessary for the policy
to be put into practice and ongoing monitoring implemented. 

6.2 The Trading Standards Manager will therefore make arrangements to monitor the
number of requests for business advice and complaints received each year and the number of
requests to form Primary Authority partnerships received.

Page 35



Glossary of Terms

28

DEFINITION

Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Oversees policy on animal health and welfare enforcement
Food Standards Agency 
None Governmental Body responsible for overseeing food and
animal feed enforcement
Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs
Informal arrangement between the Trading Standards Service
and businesses based within West Berkshire and Wokingham
Intelligence Data Base
Database used to share intelligence between authorities
National Trading Standards Board
Body responsible for co-ordinating service delivery with a national
aspect
Office of Fair Trading
Statutory arrangement between the Trading Standards Service
and businesses based within West Berkshire and Wokingham
Primary Care Trust 
Links to Trading Standards on Public Health
Small to Medium Sized Enterprise
Trading Standards South East Ltd
Body responsible for co-ordinating service delivery with a regional
aspect

TERM

DEFRA

FSA

HMRC
Home Authority
Principal (HA)
IDB

NTSB

OFT
Primary Authority
(PA)
PCT
SME
TSSEL

Page 36



Page 37



Tel: West Berkshire 01635 519930  Wokingham 01189 746400
email: tsadvice@westberks.gov.uk

fax: 01635 519240

If you require this information in a different format, such as audio tape, or in another language,
please ask an English speaker to contact Trading Standards on 01635 519930.

WBC/TS/SM/0512

Trading Standards Service

Council Offices, Market Street,
Newbury RG14 5LD

Civic Offices, Shute End,
Wokingham, RG40 1WW

Page 38


	Agenda
	1. Trading Standards service plan 2012
	TSserviceplan2012-14_Layout 1


